Public Document Pack

Agenda for a meeting of the Bradford South Area
Committee to be held on Thursday, 26 September 2019
at 5.00 pm in Committee Room 3 - City Hall, Bradford
Members of the Committee – Councillors
LABOUR

CONSERVATIVE

Wainwright
T Hussain
Dodds
Warburton
Wood
Tait
S Khan
Mukhtar

Bibby

Alternates:
LABOUR
Berry
Ferriby
D Green
Jabar
Johnson
Thornton
Watson

CONSERVATIVE
Hargreaves

Notes:


This agenda can be made available in Braille, large print or tape format on request by
contacting the Agenda contact shown below.
 The taking of photographs, filming and sound recording of the meeting is allowed except if
Councillors vote to exclude the public to discuss confidential matters covered by Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972. Recording activity should be respectful to the conduct of
the meeting and behaviour that disrupts the meeting (such as oral commentary) will not be
permitted. Anyone attending the meeting who wishes to record or film the meeting's
proceedings is advised to liaise with the Agenda Contact who will provide guidance and ensure
that any necessary arrangements are in place. Those present who are invited to make spoken
contributions to the meeting should be aware that they may be filmed or sound recorded.
 If any further information is required about any item on this agenda, please contact the officer
named at the foot of that agenda item.
Decisions on items marked * are not Executive functions and may not be called in under
Paragraph 8.7 of Part 3E of the Constitution.

From:
Parveen Akhtar
City Solicitor
Agenda Contact: Yusuf Patel
Phone: 01274 434579
E-Mail: yusuf.patel@bradford.gov.uk

To:

A. PROCEDURAL ITEMS
1.

ALTERNATE MEMBERS (Standing Order 34)
The City Solicitor will report the names of alternate Members who are
attending the meeting in place of appointed Members.

2.

DISCLOSURES OF INTEREST
(Members Code of Conduct - Part 4A of the Constitution)
To receive disclosures of interests from members and co-opted
members on matters to be considered at the meeting. The disclosure
must include the nature of the interest.
An interest must also be disclosed in the meeting when it becomes
apparent to the member during the meeting.
Notes:
(1)

Members may remain in the meeting and take part fully in
discussion and voting unless the interest is a disclosable
pecuniary interest or an interest which the Member feels would
call into question their compliance with the wider principles set
out in the Code of Conduct. Disclosable pecuniary interests
relate to the Member concerned or their spouse/partner.

(2)

Members in arrears of Council Tax by more than two months
must not vote in decisions on, or which might affect, budget
calculations, and must disclose at the meeting that this
restriction applies to them. A failure to comply with these
requirements is a criminal offence under section 106 of the
Local Government Finance Act 1992.

(3)

Members are also welcome to disclose interests which are not
disclosable pecuniary interests but which they consider should
be made in the interest of clarity.

(4)

Officers must disclose interests in accordance with Council
Standing Order 44.

2

3.

MINUTES
Recommended –
That the minutes of the meeting held on 27 June 2019 be signed
as a correct record (previously circulated).
(Yusuf Patel – 01274 434579)

4.

INSPECTION OF REPORTS AND BACKGROUND PAPERS
(Access to Information Procedure Rules – Part 3B of the Constitution)
Reports and background papers for agenda items may be inspected by
contacting the person shown after each agenda item. Certain reports
and background papers may be restricted.
Any request to remove the restriction on a report or background paper
should be made to the relevant Strategic Director or Assistant Director
whose name is shown on the front page of the report.
If that request is refused, there is a right of appeal to this meeting.
Please contact the officer shown below in advance of the meeting if
you wish to appeal.
(Yusuf Patel - 01274 434579)

5.

PUBLIC QUESTION TIME
(Access to Information Procedure Rules – Part 3B of the Constitution)
To hear questions from electors within the District on any matter this is
the responsibility of the Committee.
Questions must be received in writing by the City Solicitor in
Room 112, City Hall, Bradford, BD1 1HY, by mid-day on Tuesday
24 September 2019.
(Yusuf Patel - 01274 434579)
B. BUSINESS ITEMS

6.

LIBRARIES UPDATE
A verbal update will be provided on Libraries.
(Jacqui Buckley - 01274 437835)

3

7.

THORNTON ROAD, QUEENSBURY - OBJECTIONS TO PROPOSED
DISABLED PERSONS PARKING PLACE

1-6

The Strategic Director Place will submit a report (Document “F”)
which sets out an application for a Disabled Persons Parking Place for
28 Albert Road, Queensbury (parking place to be located on Thornton
Road) which has resulted in objections.
Recommended –
(1)

That the Bradford South Area Committee determines
whether or not to allow the installation of a Disabled
Persons Parking Place on Thornton Road, Queensbury.

(2)

That the applicant and objectors be informed accordingly.

Overview and Scrutiny Committee: Regeneration and Environment
(Andrew Smith - 01274 434674)
8.

HARTINGTON TERRACE, BRADFORD- REQUEST FOR A
DISABLED PERSONS PARKING PLACE

7 - 12

The Strategic Director Place will submit a report (Document “G”)
which sets out an application for a Disabled Persons Parking Place
where the application does not meet all the criteria.
Recommended –
(1)

That the Bradford South Area Committee determines
whether or not to allow the installation of a Disabled
Persons Parking Place at 41 Hartington Terrace.

(2)

That the applicant be informed accordingly.

Overview and Scrutiny Committee: Regeneration and Environment
(Andrew Smith - 01274 434674)
9.

VARIOUS SITES IN BRADFORD SOUTH - TRO OBJECTIONS
The Strategic Director Place (Document “H”) which sets out
objections and a petition received to a recently advertised Traffic
Regulation Order for various parking restrictions in the Bradford South
constituency.

4

13 - 20

Recommended –
(1)

That the objections be overruled and the Order be sealed
and implemented as advertised.

(2)

That the objectors and lead petitioner be informed
accordingly.

Overview and Scrutiny Committee: Regeneration and Environment
(Andrew Smith - 01274 434674)

10.

STRONGER COMMUNITIES STRATEGY AND DELIVERY PLAN

21 - 54

The Strategic Director Place will submit a report (Document “I”) which
asked Members to note the progress made on the Stronger
Communities Delivery Plan, produced by the Bradford Stronger
Communities Partnership.
Recommended –
Bradford South Area Committee is asked to note the progress of
the Bradford Stronger Communities Delivery Plan.
Overview and Scrutiny Committee: Regeneration and Environment
(Zahra Niazi - - 01274 436082)
11.

YOUTH SERVICE UPDATE - BRADFORD SOUTH
The Strategic Director Place will submit a report (Document “J”)
which gives an update on the work undertaken by the Youth Service in
the Bradford South Area in the past 12 months and outlines the
direction of travel for the next 12 months.
Recommended –
That the work undertaken by the Youth Service in the Bradford
South Area as detailed in Document “J” be welcomed.
Overview and Scrutiny Committee: Children’s Services
(Mick Charlton - 01274 431155)

5

55 - 72

12.

2019/20 BRADFORD SOUTH YOUTH AND COMMUNITY CHEST
GRANTS

73 - 78

The Strategic Director Place will submit a report (Document “K”)
which details the Youth and Community Chest Grants awarded from
applications received prior to the 31 May 2019 deadline.
Recommended –
(1)

That the wide range of applications from groups,
organisations and individuals across Bradford South are
noted and welcomed.

(2)

That the Bradford South Area Co-ordinator’s Office
continue to ensure the effective allocation of the Youth and
Community Chest budget by providing appropriate advice
and support to applicants.

Overview and Scrutiny Committee: Corporate
(Mick Charlton - 01274 431155)

THIS AGENDA AND ACCOMPANYING DOCUMENTS HAVE BEEN PRODUCED, WHEREVER POSSIBLE, ON RECYCLED PAPER

6

Agenda Item 7/
Report of the Strategic Director, Place to the meeting of
Bradford South Area Committee to be held on 26
September 2019

F
Subject:
THORNTON ROAD, QUEENSBURY – OBJECTIONS TO PROPOSED DISABLED
PERSONS PARKING PLACE

Summary statement:
This report considers an application for a Disabled Persons Parking Place for 28 Albert
Road, Queensbury (parking place to be located on Thornton Road) which has resulted in
objections.

Ward:

Steve Hartley
Strategic Director
Place
Report Contact: Andrew Smith
Principal Engineer

Queensbury

Portfolio:
Regeneration, Planning and Transport
Overview & Scrutiny Area:
Regeneration and Environment

Phone: (01274) 434674
E-mail: andrew.smith@bradford.gov.uk

Page 1

1.0

SUMMARY

1.1

This report considers an application for a Disabled Persons Parking Place for 28 Albert Road,
Queensbury (parking place to be located on Thornton Road) which has resulted in objections.

2.0

BACKGROUND

2.1

The Council has received an application for a Disabled Persons Parking Place (DPPP) from
the occupant of 28 Albert Road. The resident who lives here meets all the criteria for a
disabled parking space.

2.2

The frontage to the applicant’s property is currently subject to No Waiting At Any Time
parking restrictions due to its proximity to the Thornton Road and Chapel Street junctions. In
view of this it was initially suggested that a DPPP be located on Thornton Road however,
following a local consultation, this met with a number of objections. An alternative site on
Chapel Street was subsequently proposed. An objection to this was considered by the
Bradford South Area Committee on 28 March 2019. It was resolved that:
The item be deferred for officers to consider alternative sites for a Disabled Persons Parking
Place and allow further consultation with the applicant, local ward members and any affected
frontages as appropriate.

2.3

Following further discussions, a report was present to the Bradford South Area Committee on
27 June 2019. It was resolved that:
The provision of a Disabled Persons Parking Place on Thornton Road be promoted, with any
residual objections being reported back to a future meeting of the Bradford South Area
Committee.

2.4

The advertisement of a proposed DPPP on Thornton Road, Queensbury has resulted in 7
objections.

2.2

A plan showing the indicative location of a DPPP on Thornton Road is attached as Appendix
1.

3.0

OTHER CONSIDERATIONS

3.1

The area has been visited by officers to determine the most suitable position of the disabled
bay from a number of options; local ward members were also invited to attend and comment.

4.0

FINANCIAL AND RESOURCE APPRAISAL

4.1

A budget of £5,000 for the provision of DPPP across the Bradford South constituency has
been approved as part of the 2019/20 Safer Roads schemes programme. If approved, this
parking place would be implemented as part of the overall programme for Bradford South.

Page 2

5.0

RISK MANAGEMENT AND GOVERNANCE ISSUES

5.1

There are no significant risks arising out of the implementation of the proposed
recommendations.

6.0

LEGAL APPRAISAL

6.1

The options contained in this report are within the Councils powers as Highway Authority and
Traffic Regulation Authority.

7.0

OTHER IMPLICATIONS

7.1

EQUALITY & DIVERSITY
Due regard has been given to Section 149 of the Equality Act when determining the
proposals in this report.

7.2

SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS
There are no sustainability implications arising from this report.

7.3

GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS IMPACTS
There is no impact on the Council's own and the wider District's carbon footprint and
emissions from other greenhouse gasses arising from this report.

7.4

COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS
None.

7.5

HUMAN RIGHTS ACT
There are no implications on the Human Rights act

7.6

TRADE UNION
None

7.7

WARD IMPLICATIONS
Ward members have been consulted on the application.

7.8

AREA COMMITTEE WARD PLAN IMPLICATIONS

7.8.1 None
7.9

IMPLICATIONS FOR CORPORATE PARENTING
None

Page 3

7.10

ISSUES ARISING FROM PRIVACY IMPACT ASSESMENT
None

8.0

NOT FOR PUBLICATION DOCUMENTS

8.1

None

9.0

OPTIONS

9.1

That the Bradford South Area Committee overrules the objections and approves an
application for the installation of a Disabled Persons Parking Place on Thornton Road,
Queensbury.

9.2

That the Bradford South Area Committee upholds the objections and refuses an application
for the installation of a Disabled Persons Parking Place on Thornton Road, Queensbury.

10.0

RECOMMENDATIONS

10.1

That the Bradford South Area Committee determines whether or not to allow the installation
of a Disabled Persons Parking Place on Thornton Road, Queensbury.

10.2

That the applicant and objectors be informed accordingly.

11.0

APPENDICES

11.1

Appendix A – Location Plan

12.0

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

12.1

City of Bradford Metropolitan District Council File Ref:HS/TRSS/104013/13

Page 4

APPENDIX A

Page 5

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 8/
Report of the Strategic Director, Place to the meeting of
Bradford South Area Committee to be held on 26
September 2019

G
Subject:
HARTINGTON TERRACE, BRADFORD– REQUEST FOR A DISABLED PERSONS
PARKING PLACE

Summary statement:
This report considers an application for a Disabled Persons Parking Place where the
application does not meet all the criteria.

Ward:

Steve Hartley
Strategic Director
Place
Report Contact: Andrew Smith
Principal Engineer

Great Horton

Portfolio:
Regeneration, Planning and Transport
Overview & Scrutiny Area:
Regeneration and Environment

Phone: (01274) 434674
E-mail: andrew.smith@bradford.gov.uk

Page 7

1.0

SUMMARY

1.1

This report considers an application for a Disabled Persons Parking Place where the
application does not meet all the criteria.

2.0

BACKGROUND

2.1

The Council has received an application for a Disabled Persons Parking Place from the
occupant of 41 Hartington Terrace. The resident who lives here meets all the criteria for a
disabled parking space with the exception of receiving the higher rate of DLA.

2.2

A plan showing the indicative location of a Disabled Persons Parking Place outside 41
Hartington Terrace is attached as Appendix 1.

3.0

OTHER CONSIDERATIONS

3.1

Neighbouring properties have been consulted and there have been no objections to the
installation of a parking place at this location.

4.0

FINANCIAL AND RESOURCE APPRAISAL

4.1

A budget of £5,000 for the provision of Disabled Persons Parking Places across the Bradford
South constituency has been approved as part of the 2019/20 Safer Roads schemes
programme. If approved, this parking place would be implemented as part of the overall
programme in Bradford South.

5.0

RISK MANAGEMENT AND GOVERNANCE ISSUES

5.1

There are no significant risks arising out of the implementation of the proposed
recommendations.

6.0

LEGAL APPRAISAL

6.1

The options contained in this report are within the Council’s powers as Highway Authority and
Traffic Regulation Authority.

7.0

OTHER IMPLICATIONS

7.1

EQUALITY & DIVERSITY
Due regard has been given to Section 149 of the Equality Act when determining the
proposals in this report.

7.2

SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS
There are no sustainability implications arising from this report.

Page 8

7.3

GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS IMPACTS
There is no impact on the Council's own and the wider District's carbon footprint and
emissions from other greenhouse gasses arising from this report.

7.4

COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS
None.

7.5

HUMAN RIGHTS ACT
There are no implications on the Human Rights Act.

7.6

TRADE UNION
None

7.7

WARD IMPLICATIONS
None.

7.8

AREA COMMITTEE WARD PLAN IMPLICATIONS

7.8.1 None
7.9

IMPLICATIONS FOR CORPORATE PARENTING

7.9.1 None
7.10

ISSUES ARISING FROM PRIVACY IMPACT ASSESMENT

7.10.1 None
8.0

NOT FOR PUBLICATION DOCUMENTS

8.1

None

9.0

OPTIONS

9.1

That the Bradford South Area Committee approves an application for the installation of a
Disabled Persons Parking Place at 41 Hartington Terrace.

9.2

That the Bradford South Area Committee refuses an application for the installation of a
Disabled Persons Parking Place at 41 Hartington Terrace.

Page 9

10.0

RECOMMENDATIONS

10.1

That the Bradford South Area Committee determines whether or not to allow the installation
of a Disabled Persons Parking Place at 41 Hartington Terrace.

10.2

That the applicant be informed accordingly.

11.0

APPENDICES

11.1

Appendix A – Location Plan

12.0

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

12.1

City of Bradford Metropolitan District Council File Ref: HS/TRSS/104512/03

Page 10

APPENDIX A

Page 11

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 9/
Report of the Strategic Director, Department of Place to
the meeting of Bradford South Area Committee to be
held on 26 September 2019.

H
Subject:
VARIOUS SITES IN BRADFORD SOUTH – TRO OBJECTIONS

Summary statement:
This report considers objections and a petition received to a recently advertised Traffic
Regulation Order for various parking restrictions in the Bradford South constituency.

Wards:

Great Horton, Royds

Steve Hartley
Strategic Director
Department of Place

Portfolio:

Report Contact: Andrew Smith
Principal Engineer

Overview & Scrutiny Area:

Phone: (01274) 434674
E-mail: andrew.smith@bradford.gov.uk

Regeneration, Planning and Transport

Regeneration and Environment

Page 13

1.0

SUMMARY

1.1

This report considers objections and a petition received to a recently advertised Traffic
Regulation Order for various parking restrictions in the Bradford South constituency.

2.0

BACKGROUND

2.1

At the meeting on 28 June 2018 the Bradford South Area Committee approved, as part of its
Safer Roads Schemes programme, the promotion of a Traffic Regulation Order for parking
restrictions on Beckside Road, Beckside Lane, Cumberland Road, Great Horton Road,
Hollingwood Lane, Halton Lane, Haycliffe Road, Northside Road, A647 Halifax Road, A647
Scarlet Heights, A647 West End, Cuthbert Close, A6036 Halifax Road, Angerton Way, Braine
Croft, Cemetery Road, Eaglesfield Drive, Farfield Avenue, Fenwick Drive, Lingdale Road,
Reevy Avenue, Studley Avenue, Shaw Street, Moor Top Road, Cooper Lane, Reevy Road
West, Reevy Avenue, Woodside Road, Arkwright Street, Broughton Avenue, Bierley Lane,
Denbrook Avenue, Denbrook Way, Holme Wood Road, Moorside Mews, Newall Park Drive,
Newall Road, Rook Lane, Law Street, Melford Street, Toftshaw Lane, Beacon Road, Wibsey
Bank, St Enochs Road, 2A641 Huddersfield Road, Belmont Avenue, Carr Lane, Cleckheaton
Road, New Works Road, Sal Royd Road, Storr Hill, Wesley Avenue and Wyke Lane.

2.2

The Traffic Regulation Order was advertised between 11 July 2019 and 01 August 2019. A
number of residential properties and businesses have been consulted. As a result, letters of
objections (including a petition) in respect of 2 of the locations have been received.

2.3

Objections and petition have been received for the following elements of the scheme:
i) Beckside Road proposed no waiting 7am to 7pm restrictions as shown on drawing No.
HS/TRSS/BS/104084/GTHOR/2/CON-1A in appendix 1.
ii) Cemetery Road proposed no waiting at any time restrictions as shown on drawing No.
HS/TRSS/BS/104084/ROYDS/2/CON-1A in appendix 2.

2.4

A summary of the valid points from the objection letters and corresponding officer comments
is tabulated below:

Objectors concerns
Beckside Road, Lidget Green, Gt Horton.
Objector 1 and Petition
The objectors and petitioner’s object to the
proposed waiting restrictions between 7am
and 7pm, on the grounds that these
measures will take away parking provision
for all the residents and businesses.

Officer comments
The proposal is for a short section of 15
metres in length of waiting restriction, they
are to replace an existing white bar keep
clear marking which is regularly abused
during the day, evening and weekends. This
was requested by the business who have
been having serious problems from the
neighbouring businesses and nearby
residential properties, which is making it
difficult for their customers and themselves
to access their forecourt, being blocked in
when trying to leave. The proposal will
benefit the business during hours of
opening and maintain access for its
deliveries.

Page 14

It will also benefit the residents between
7pm and 7am, they will be able to park onstreet as the restrictions only cover
business hours.
Cemetery Road, Moor Top, Royds.
The restrictions are being introduced due to
visitors to the stadium parking too close to
the accesses of the stadium namely, the
An objection came Bradford Park Avenue
access to North Bierley Cemetery, a bend
which is unsighted on both approaches, at
FC, they objected to any of the restrictions
being proposed as it would stop users of the junctions, and down both sides of this road.
Horsfall Stadium parking close to the
ground.
Bradford Park Avenue FC places roadwork
cones on the highway to stop parking so it
maintains access to the ground. Drivers
park as close to the ground as possible and
do not consider access for through traffic or
local residents.
Objectors 1

The proposed restrictions will maintain
access should emergency services be
needed and to maintain through traffic on
Cemetery Road or access the stadium
Concerns of parking at this site were
brought to the attention of the Royds Ward
Forum by the Club; Bradford Park Avenue
FC.
The site was visited twice at home games
one was the highest home gate of the
season so access problems were seen at
their worst.
The proposals would maintain access for
road users and access to residential areas.
The club was offered a site visit to look what
their concerns were, but didn’t take up the
offer. As a result the proposals have been
advertised as per the original consultation.
2.5

It is recommended that the proposals be implemented as advertised.

3.0

OTHER CONSIDERATIONS

3.1

Local ward members and the emergency services have been consulted. The comments
received have been considered in the development of the proposals.
Page 15

4.0

FINANCIAL AND RESOURCE APPRAISAL

4.1

A budget of £20,000 has been allocated from the Bradford South Area Committee Safer
Roads programme for this project. The works could be implemented within that budget.

5.0

RISK MANAGEMENT AND GOVERNANCE ISSUES

5.1

A failure to implement the proposed restrictions will result in ongoing safety and/or access
issues.

6.0

LEGAL APPRAISAL

6.1

The options contained in this report are within the Council’s powers as Highway Authority and
Traffic Regulation Authority under the relevant legislation.

7.0

OTHER IMPLICATIONS

7.1

EQUALITY & DIVERSITY
Due regard has been given to Section 149 of the Equality Act when determining the
proposals in this report.

7.2

SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS
None

7.3

GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS IMPACTS
There is no impact on the Council's own and the wider District's carbon footprint and
emissions from other greenhouse gasses arising from this report.

7.4

COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS
The proposed measures would improve road safety.

7.5

HUMAN RIGHTS ACT
There are no implications on the Human Rights Act

7.6

TRADE UNION
None

7.7

WARD IMPLICATIONS
All ward members have been consulted on the proposals.

7.8

AREA COMMITTEE WARD PLAN IMPLICATIONS
None

8.0

NOT FOR PUBLICATION DOCUMENTS

8.1

None
Page 16

9.0

OPTIONS

9.1

Members may propose an alternative course of action; in which case they will receive
appropriate guidance from officers.

10.0

RECOMMENDATIONS

10.1

That the objections be overruled and the Order be sealed and implemented as advertised.

10.2

That the objectors and lead petitioner be informed accordingly.

11.0

APPENDICES

11.1

Appendix 1 – Drawing No. HS/TRSS/BS/104084/GTHOR/2/CON-1A.

11.2

Appendix 2 – Drawing No. HS/TRSS/BS/104084/ROYDS/2/CON-1A 1 & 2.

12.0

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

12.1

City of Bradford Metropolitan District Council File Ref: HS/TRSS/BS/104084.

Page 17

APPENDIX 1

Page 18

APPENDIX 2

Page 19

Page 20

Agenda Item 10/

Report of the Director of Place to the meeting of
Bradford South Area Committee to be held on 26
September 2019

I
Subject:
STRONGER COMMUNITIES STRATEGY AND DELIVERY PLAN

Summary statement:
Bradford South Area Committee is asked to note the progress made on the Stronger
Communities Delivery Plan, produced by the Bradford Stronger Communities
Partnership.

Steve Hartley
Strategic Director
Department of Place

Portfolio:

Report Contact: Zahra Niazi

Overview and Scrutiny Committee:
Corporate

Phone: (01274) 436082
E-mail: zahra.niazi@bradford.gov.uk

Neighbourhoods & Community Safety

Page 21

1.

SUMMARY
Bradford South Area Committee is note the progress on the ‘Stronger Communities
Together Delivery Plan’.

2.
2.1

BACKGROUND
At the Bradford South Area Committee meeting on 28 February 2019 it was
resolved that;
a) That further consultation be undertaken with Ward Councillors on how the
Stronger Communities Strategy and Delivery Plan can be delivered successfully
in the Bradford South area.

3.
3.1

OTHER CONSIDERATIONS
The Stronger Communities Team met with as many Bradford South Councillors as
possible in wards to talk through the Strategy and Delivery Plan over the period of
March to August 2019. Comments and issues raised by the Committee were
noted and discussed;
a) The Committee were concerned that the Linking Network would not be proactive
enough in engaging in school recruitment. The Linking Network is run by a well
established Charity and spear-headed by ex-teachers and Co-Directors Linda
Cowie and Meg Henry. Currently Linking Network runs across 24 Local
authorities across the country. Both have extensive knowledge of working with
schools and have well established relationships with Heads and Chief
Executives’ especially in Bradford. As part of our funding the schools are offered
£500 to participate in the programme. The model delivers a train the trainer
model and links two schools, usually one classroom in each school over a
period of an academic year. The schools at a minimum meet four times. The
Linking Network offer teacher support during the programme and a regular
quarterly meeting for teachers to meet to share good practice. The Primary
School is an established model. The Linking Network is trailing a secondary
school model which does not run in the same way as the Primary School offer.
This model is currently being adapted and tested. Appleton Academy,
Buttershaw Business and Enterprise College, Grange Technology College and
Queensbury School are involved in the programme. 28 primary schools are
engaged in Bradford South. A list is available on request.
b) The Committee raised a lack of acknowledgement of the Roma community in
the Strategy. The meetings allowed discussion of the Roma Strategy which will
be developed with five public sector organisations; Health, Bradford Council,
Police, Fire Service and Police and is highlighted in the Strategy. It will also
engage in consultation with the Roma community in Bradford South and will be
delivered by support from the VCS. The project is currently advertised on
YorTender.
c) The Committee raised a number of issues within Bradford South particularly in
Great Horton. The meetings allowed discussion about the Community
Conversations project, which will look to host a series of conversations to
mediate tensions in specific wards. The project will carry out a Community
Readiness approach to identify further engagement work which may need to be
1
Page 22

undertaken with the identified groups before interventions can be delivered. We
will be asking the Area Coordinators Office to identify two wards once the
provider has been appointed. From conversations, we believe that Great Horton
should be one of the wards this project is delivered in.
d) The Committee raised gaps in Sports. The meetings allowed discussion about
the £8m Local Delivery Pilot programme funded through Sports England and the
Innovation Fund.
3.2

Progress against our delivery plan has been included as Appendix A. The
Committee is to note that activities in the Delivery Plan have been developed not to
duplicate other programme priorities such as the Local Delivery Pilot and Creative
People and Places. The Stronger Communities Together strategy intends to work
alongside these. Where there are gaps in the delivery plan the Innovation Fund can
be used to address these.

3.3

We launched the first round of the Innovation Fund on the 28 May. We offered
individual awards up to £5,000 through the Participatory Budgeting which took
place on the 17 July. This is where community members had a say on where to
spend the budget. The total amount available for the first round was £50,000.

3.4

The majority of those who attended felt that the process was ‘democratic and
transparent’. 13 projects were funded using this process. Please see Appendix B
for a list of the projects or visit https://bdp.bradford.gov.uk/about-us/strongercommunities-partnership/.

3.5

The second round of the Fund will open at the end of September. The maximum
grant value is £15,000. The total budget for this round is £75,000. Participatory
budgeting is not being used due to the small number of organisations that can be
funded in this round. The last round will open in January 2020 which will be grants
up to £5,000.

3.6

The Innovation Fund aims to fund activities across all areas of Bradford District to
facilitate our programme outcomes. The Fund offers opportunity to respond to
emerging needs and tensions, scale up smaller projects and test new ideas. All
project activities are intended to engage all communities with primarily focus on
those in poorer deprived communities including White British, women, young
people or new communities.

3.7

We are also working with residents to develop a list of Values for the District. The
draft documentation has been circulated to Councillors for support and comment.
These values will underpin our vision and sit behind our new name; Bradford For
Everyone, Appendix C. We will launch the campaign once these have been
finalised, where everyone can sign up to them. The Values will be incorporated into
our 2040 Bradford District Plan and support the bid for City of Culture. The District
Values will open for public consultation from September.

4.
4.1

FINANCIAL & RESOURCE APPRAISAL
Year 1 funding was announced October 2018 of £1.1m. Year 2 funding was
announced at the end of March 2019. We received £1.6m, £250k has been ring
2
Page 23

fenced by MHCLG to be paid directly to Department, work and Pensions (DWP).
The total funding for this programme is £2.7m. £2.1m has been allocated for the
delivery of projects. The Programme started officially from 1 April 2019 and will end
in 31 March 2021.
4.2

In addition to funding from MHCLG we have provided match funding to a number of
other programmes to support delivery of our strategy and delivery plan. Successful
bids have been made to;




Creative People and Places (CPP), which is a £3.65m programme for
Bradford District funded from the Arts Council for the 4 years of the 10 year
programme. The programme aims to deliver a step change in cultural
engagement and participation and for Bradford’s art, arts organisations and
audiences to be representative of its rich diversity. We have established a
strategic partnership to maximise our delivery through match funding of
£118,167. This means we will be able to increase the number of people we
work with by working alongside the CPP programme to co-deliver our People
Library and configuring local events and festivals so they are more reflective
of the diversity in our District. We will begin to put some early foundations for
delivery over October- December 2019 with anticipation that the programme
will begin early next year. The project will deliver in the wards of Tong along
with Manningham, Bradford Moor, City, Keighley West and Keighley Central,
aiming to generate up to 100,000 new attendances at new arts and cultural
events.
In August 2019 Bradford Council was successful in receiving match funding
from the European Social Investment Fund (ESIF). This allows us to extend
the posts under our ESOL Coordination Hub from 18 months to 3 years.
The Hub will concentrate on collecting data of the 24,000 potential learners
who cannot speak English or speak English well. Particularly for Great
Horton this equates to 1361 according to the Census 2011. The Hub will
map current ESOL provision in order to match need against service delivery.
This information will also be used to help create a case for further funding for
ESOL provision. The Hub will look to assess those living within our District
to understand what the current barriers are to learning and progressing in
ESOL. The additional year allows us to start driving appropriate provision
and funding into the District.

4.3

A portion of this funding has been allocated against project support and evaluation.
An internal Council team, supported by specialist support, commissioned by
MHCLG will help ensure that local interventions are delivered and monitored so that
lessons can be learnt from the work that has taken place.

4.4

We have recruited to all five posts within the Programme Team. Our three Project
Support Officers work thematically and support People Together members, which
are a resident sub-group to our Stronger Communities Partnership Board. Our
Evaluation and Project Improvement Officer is responsible for local evaluation and
our Programme Administrator is responsible for finance, data and governance.

4.5

As part of the programme the University of Bradford will recruit a Social Integration
3
Page 24

Research Fellow. The post will sit under the Head of Research and will be
supported by the Professor of Diversity. We envisage this post to be recruited by
November 2019. They will lead on research identified within the strategy.
5.
5.1

RISK MANAGEMENT AND GOVERNANCE ISSUES
A formal governance structure has been established. The Stronger Communities
Partnership will support and oversee the delivery of the strategy. MHCLG has
stated an expectation that the local partnership will have an independent Chair.
Bishop Toby Haworth has been appointed as Chair through a fair recruitment and
selection process.

5.2

People Together is a local resident sub-committee to the Board. Recruitment for
People Together has closed. However we will be looking to recruit more members
from Bradford South as a couple of members have had to stand down to illness and
other commitments. Our wider People Together Network recruitment will start from
October 2019. Any new members can sign up here;
https://bdp.bradford.gov.uk/registration-of-interest/

5.3

The Partner Forum was launched on the 20 March. This runs quarterly. Our next
one will be held on the 15 October. The Partner Forum is the vehicle we use to
share our learning, build partnership working and support organisations with
applications to our Innovation Fund. There is also a Delivery Sub-Group which is
made up of our delivery partners which will run from October.

6.
6.1

LEGAL APPRAISAL
There are no legal issues arising from the contents of this report.

7.

OTHER IMPLICATIONS

7.1
EQUALITY & DIVERSITY
7.1.1 There are no additional equality and diversity issues arising.
7.2

SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS
The evaluation from our delivery plan and our research will inform future investment
and service delivery.

7.3

GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS IMPACTS
There are no greenhouse gas emission impacts apparent.

7.4
COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS
7.4.1 There are no additional community safety issues arising from the contents of this
report.
7.5
HUMAN RIGHTS ACT
7.5.1 There are no additional human rights issues arising from the contents of this report.
7.6

TRADE UNION
Aspects of the strategy will focus on change in policy and approach, for example in
relation to selection and recruitment practice. There are two projects where this
applies;
4
Page 25




Inclusive Employers
Workforce training both of which can be seen in Appendix A.

Consultation will take place with trade unions as appropriate.
7.7

WARD IMPLICATIONS
To be successful, work to build stronger and more integrated communities will need
to take place in all wards and communities across the district. Whilst the delivery
plan will focus on particular areas within the district, the work funded by MHCLG is
about learning what works and what does not work and what is ‘scalable’. The
‘Stronger Communities strategy’ identifies work that is planned over the next five
years, but needs to be seen within the context of a wider and more long term
strategy.

7.8

The activities outlined in this report contribute to priorities within the Bradford South
Area Ward Plans.

7.9

IMPLICATIONS FOR CORPORATE PARENTING
There are no corporate parenting implications apparent.

7.10

ISSUES ARISING FROM PRIVACY IMPACT ASSESMENT
There are no issues arising from the privacy impact assessments.

8.

NOT FOR PUBLICATION DOCUMENTS
There are no ‘Not for Publication Documents’

9.
9.1

OPTIONS
Bradford South Area Committee may determine to seek regular updates on the
delivery plan and impact measures applied to certain interventions that are
proposed.

10.

RECOMMENDATIONS
Bradford South Area Committee is asked to note the progress of the Bradford
Stronger Communities Delivery Plan.

11.
11.1

APPENDICES
Appendix A
Bradford Stronger Communities Progress Delivery Plan.
Copy of the Delivery Plan and progress made against each project relevant to
Bradford South. This includes any District wide initiatives.
Appendix B
Innovation Fund – Round One
A list of projects funded in the first round of the Innovation Fund.
Appendix C
Bradford for Everyone slide pack
Copy of logo and potential campaign.

5
Page 26

12.
12.1

BACKGROUND INFORMATION
Stronger Communities Together Strategy published in March 2019.

12.2

“It’s Your Place – Tell Us What You Think” Report of the Social Kinetic, produced
14th August 2018.

12.3

Report and minutes of Bradford South Area Committee, 28 February 2019.

6
Page 27

This page is intentionally left blank

APPENDIX A
BRADFORD SOUTH AREA COMMITTEE
DELIVERY PLAN
ID

1

Project

Innovation
Fund

Page 29
2

Bradford
United

Summary
The Innovation Fund will be used to research
new and emerging trends; it will also be used
to address gaps and pilot new ideas. The
Innovation Fund will primarily focus on;
1) Interventions and services tested
elsewhere both nationally and internationally
and there is a good evidence base of
success.
2) New emerging challenges such as post
Brexit, international tensions and/or negative
focus on a new area or group i.e. Refugees
and Asylums.
3) New ideas that are untested and have not
been trialled.
Young people aged 11 to 24 years will be
linked through Youth Clubs across the
District, enabling them to build bridges across
areas they wouldn’t normally go or people
they would interact with. The interaction will
involve two Youth Clubs to link together over
a period of 6 months where young people will
develop their leadership skills, engage in
team building opportunities, increase
exposure of arts and religious and cultural
places of significance and importance. It will
provide a safe space for open dialogue and
conflict resolution. Young people will engage
in a social action project which may range
from supporting older people, the homeless
or with those with disabilities.

PREPARED FOR 26 SEPTEMBER 2019

Provider

Project
length

Start
Date

Amount
Progress
Round 1 completed. Round 2 to launch at the
end of September 2019. Please see
Appendix C for a list of projects funded for
Round 1.

Grant
funding

Youth
Service

6
months12
months

18
months

28
May
2019

Project Proposals will emerge through our
learning and collaborative networks and
groups, market place events which will
encourage proposals from the VCS and from
what is already working and what isn’t,
decision making will be made through
Participatory budgeting. Funding is up to
£5,000 with a pot of £50,000 and second pot
of £15,000 with a post of £75,000.
Project in set up phase from 1 June,
engagement and recruitment activities are
being undertaken with delivery starting from 1
September.

£200,000

£100,000

1 June
2019

1

APPENDIX A

3

4

Inclusive
Employers

English
Language
Coordinati
on Hub

Page 30
5

Festivals

6

Graduate
Employme
nt Scheme

Increase social mobility and diversity in the
workforce working with Bradford Council and
Northern Gas Network using an Employee
Value Proposition from Grant Thornton. The
project will include an Employer's Network to
disseminate learning and change of culture
and practices from the two participating
organisations.
The Hub will concentrate on collecting data of
the 24,000 potential learners who cannot
speak English or speak English well. The
Hub will map current ESOL provision in order
to match need against service delivery. This
information will also be used to help create a
case for further funding for ESOL provision.
The Hub will look to assess all those living
within our District to understand what the
current barriers are to learning and
progressing in ESOL.
We want to involve more residents in the
organisation of local festivals and events.
1) Using volunteers we want to run more
'buddying' of people together who would not
normally attend these events to provide new
opportunities for social mixing
2) Where gaps exist we want to invest in
events and programming to extend the 'offer'
that is available, making sure that this is
better tailored to suit the demographics of the
wider district.
3) Alongside these events we will continue
our work for much more scaled up version of
our Great Get Togethers.
Improve employment for graduates,
especially women from a BAME background.
work with local partners to identify those
communities where people are furthest from
the job market and to engage those

Grant
Thornton

Skills
House

Various

DWP

15
months

18
months
with
addition
al 18
months
through
ESIF

1- 3
months

10
months

27
Sept
2019

24
June
2019

Sept
2019

1 May
2019

The logic model and Evaluation Plan has
been agreed. Contracts have been
negotiated. The Project Outline is being
finalised and will be signed off at the
beginning of September.

£400,000

Naheed Hussain has started her role on the
24 June. She is based within Skills House.
We have drafted the English Language
Assessor role and are awaiting confirmation
for the grading panel date. BDMC were
successful with the ESIF bid which we
contributed the salaries as match funding to.

£200,000

Most of the funding is being match funded
through existing resources.

5 Great Get Together’s agreed led by
People Together by constituency – end
of September 2019.

Hope not Hate in August 2020

Refugee Week July 2020

Extending the Iconic Places of Worship
Tour in July 2020

DWP have awarded the contract to Aspire-I
Gen and the project is now in delivery with
their first cohort. However there is no
anonymised data shared and no monitoring
reporting arrangement agreed between DWP

£100,000
(Paid to
DWP
direct
from

2

APPENDIX A
communities to support more people into
work.

7

Intergener
ational
NEET
mentoring

Page 31
8

People
Library

Raising aspirations in young people aged 1826 through intergenerational mentoring.
Volunteers will include those 50 and over
who will use their wisdom, their energy and
their life experience to help keep young
people on track. We will focus our energy on
those young people who, for whatever
reason, may not achieve academic results to
continue into higher education, or were
lacking interview skills and are unemployed,
or maybe they have a skill they haven’t been
able to develop through training and
guidance. Matching between mentors and
mentees will be intergenerational as well as
between BAME and white, male and female
and other combinations based on the
diversity of both groups.
An online hub of Bradford ‘books’ will be
launched which will aim to showcase a
collection of human ‘books’. People will be
able to browse profiles online, watch a video
as well as ‘borrow’ a person for an event or
meeting or meet at a People Library event.
The project will enable us to share positive
narratives of a diverse range of local
residents. The ‘Library’ will highlight shared
experiences, interests and characteristics as
well as highlight similarities and celebrate
differences. The People Library events will be
used to increase ‘contact’ between different
communities as well as showcase role
modelling. For those involved in the project,
participants will develop social media and
digital skills whilst creating opportunities for
social mixing within the group.

To be
commissi
oned

LEAP/
Future
Leaders
(BDMC)

15
months

12
months

and BDMC. We therefore are unable to
report on the performance of the project or
report this as part of our impact story.
To be released on Yor Tender in September
2019. Projects have been phased over in
three tranches.

MHCLG)

Project is being introduced to the new cohort
of Future Leaders in September 2019. The
30 Future Leaders will support with the
identification of people, capture the stories
and plan the launch of People Library.

£40,000

£100,000

Not yet
started

1 Sept
2019

3

APPENDIX A

9

10

Community
Conversati
ons

Roma
Strategy

Page 32
11

12

Linking
Network

Social Coin

A project to help facilitate difficult and honest
conversations across the District. Areas and
communities will be selected through a
community readiness assessment. This will
identify where communities are furthest away
from integration. Discussions once
communities are engaged will focus on
personal perceptions, stereotypes, prejudices
and misconceptions. Following on from this,
communities will be encouraged to share
their own learning with others by becoming
local champions.
Develop a strategy and delivery plan that
crosses the four large public sector
institutions (Council, Health, Police, Fire &
Rescue Service).Bringing in specialist
external support to work alongside VCS
groups that support Roma communities.
Linking Network supports schools to develop
a positive, cohesive ethos by helping children
and young people in primary and secondary
schools to explore identity and celebrate
diversity by linking two classes from different
schools together over an academic year. The
project will also run a parent linking
programme and set up a digital platform for
linking schools to continue.
Social Coin is an app which enables people
to earn virtual currency for undertaking social
value activities, such as volunteering at a
litter pick, visiting a library or attending a
festival or an event for the first time.
Participants can then use these for discounts
on goods and services. Those earning coins
can also opt to donate their coins to other
people and organisations. The app records
activity undertaken to earn the coin, how it is
spent and produces data reports for the

To be
commissi
oned

To be
commissi
oned

Linking
Network

Valued
Squared

15
months

12
months

3 years
and 1
month

12
months

To be released on Yor Tender in September
2019. Projects have been phased over in
three tranches.

£100,000

To be released on Yor Tender in September
2019. Projects have been phased over in
three tranches.

£25,000
with
£25,000
for back
fill

28 classes across primary schools have
received or will be receiving Linking Network.
4 secondary schools have registered onto the
programme.

£350,000

IT procurement requires the App to be
CREST accredited which provides assurance
on the cyber security penetration test against
the risk of identifiable personal data being
stolen. Social Coin is going through this
accreditation.

£30,000

Not yet
started

Not yet
started

1 Feb
2019

1 Nov
2019

4

APPENDIX A

13

Hate Crime
Strategy

Page 33
14

Workforce
Training

programme, individuals and organisations
that are participating in the scheme. This has
already been trailed in Hull on a small scale
and will be rolled out in Bradford from August
through the programme.
Work in this area are focussed on; the antirumour strategy aims to raise awareness
about the importance of countering diversityrelated prejudices and rumours that hamper
positive interaction and social cohesion and
that lay the foundations of discriminatory and
racists attitudes and to research on the
extent on hate crime and coordinate data
more efficiently across police and education
for instance.
We will deliver a range of inclusion, equality
and diversity awareness raising programmes.
The programmes will enable those employed
in the public, voluntary, faith or private sector
to challenge and address negative
perceptions, stereotypes or prejudices that
are knowingly or unknowingly held about
others. The training will be delivered to
employees at all levels; from front line staff
who -have regular contact with local
communities - to senior decision makers and
leaders who’s possession of any conscious
or unconscious bias or prejudices could
negatively affect recruitment or employment
practices.

Hate
Crime
Alliance

Contracts
being
negotiate
d with
providers

15
months

12
months

Not yet
started

1 Sept
2019

Hate Crime Alliance will be delivering an
online counter narrative project, an
educational peer led project in schools and
promotion of the hate crime reporting centres
and ensuring these are resourced
adequately. The projects are still being
developed.

£100,000

Phase 1 of this project has now started. A
scoping exercise is being undertaken to
identify a local GP, Academy Trust, VCS
consortium and Bradford Council. Other
suggestions are welcome. Upon agreement
a survey will be conducted with a cross
selection of the workforce to access current
values and influences. This will then be
analysed to produce a training plan for each
participating organisation which will include
unconscious bias training and cultural
competency.

£25,000

5

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 35

Page 36

Page 37

Page 38

Page 39

Page 40

Page 41

Page 42

Page 43

Page 44

Page 45

Page 46

Page 47

This page is intentionally left blank

Stronger Communities Together: Innovation Fund, Round 1
Funded Projects – Awarded via Participatory Budgeting in July 2019

Page 49

PROJECT

PROJECT/ORGANISATION

AREA

PRIORITY

AWARD

“Game On!” will enable young people from different backgrounds to build new
friendships as they make a game together. Recruitment would be via schools,
schools pastoral staff, local groups, partner organisations and via social media
adverts. Sessions would be for 1.5 hours per week over seven weeks. They will
run 10 courses with seven young people per course and the sessions will be held
at SHINE Community Centre in West Bowling - but they can be mobile and use
other venues if needed by the demand of a community.

Game On,

Bradford South

Getting Along,
Working with
white working
class young
people and
schools.

£4,975

The nature of Shine Words is a game that puts an emphasis on having fun with
others. This will be particularly effective in multi-ethnic spaces such as schools
and community groups. The aim is to create a card game and app; a multilingual
resource to help new communities integrate quicker and more confidently. The
app and card game will have 100 key words that help when you arrive in a new
country. In addition to English, there are fun illustrations and eight other
languages. The app will not be limited to the number of languages that it can
display. It has the added advantage of having audio. The aim of Shine Words is to
support new communities as they arrive in Bradford, supplying them with an
immediately accessible method of explaining themselves and connecting with the
local area.

Shine Words,

Bradford South

Getting Along,
Working with
new
communities

£4,900

This The Art of Conversations aims to bridge gaps and inequalities experienced
by new communities and the difficulties perceived integrating into British society
and culture. This will involve building relationships between men, women and
other communities, to build on positive dynamics in the community and increase
understanding between communities, breaking down stereotypes and increase

The Art of Conversations,

Across the
District

Getting Along,
Working with
new and
emerging
communities

£4,990

Impact Gamers C.I.C.

Shine West Bowling

BIASAN

1

the positive impacts made by local volunteers. The project will look at issues
raised and what action can be taken to make and enhance change. The process
will involve setting up community gatherings in social hubs such as in cafes and
café-bars in Bradford. This will involve engaging groups across Bradford, from
BD1 to BD18. This process will incorporate awareness-raising sessions, engaging
cross collaboration between communities and discussion which will take place
informally leading to new connections and building on communication, leading
onto social action and local empowerment.

Page 50

Open Technology Maker Space take old technology, donated via companies or
individuals, and refurbishes it for donation to Asylum Seekers and Refugees to
help them study, progress their case and to build their life in the UK. Beyond
providing technology to people who otherwise would not have access to it, they
aim to provide a platform for the teaching of everything from basic digital skills
right up to web design, coding and computer maintenance. The use of technology
is now a requirement for job seekers, and success at work. They are going to
provide 24 drop-in sessions over 6 months, at workshops, where they will provide
people with open source technology that they can learn about and keep. They
will facilitate teaching, and develop peer-to-peer learning. These sessions will
facilitate the development and growth of tech skills and confidence with some of
the most socially excluded groups of Bradford. With their work everyone is a
volunteer: tech professionals /hobbyists and migrants alike. They all share our
various knowledge and understandings with people they might not usually
socialise, and to learn from one another and create mutually challenging and
enriching relations.

Open Technology Maker
Space,

Global Bradford is seeking to achieve solidarity and mutual understanding
between all migrants regardless of where they are from and regardless of status,
as well as debunk myths about migrants to the wider community and celebrate
diversity of cultures. The project proposes inviting ‘leaders’ of varied
communities to join us and agree on a project to deliver a one-off event

Global Bradford,

Across
Bradford
District.

Getting On,
Working with
migrant
communities

£4,980

Across
Bradford
District

Getting Along,
Working with
Afro-Caribbean
and migrant

£1,550

Solidaritech CIC

Dominica Association

2

providing a snapshot of our diversity of cultures and debunk some myths, whilst
planning a longer project from September 2019 to August 2020 working with
communities, organisations and young people to be proud of their heritage and
bring solidarity. The event will showcase sharing of stories of migration and
poetry, performers of varied communities such as people from the Windrush –
Jamaican and Dominican; EU27; Asian communities and African Communities.

communities

Page 51

In the Stepping Stones project mums from a range of ethnic backgrounds will
develop English language skills, will receive health and parenting information
which will increase their levels of confidence and assertiveness, they will also be
familiarised with language rich activities benefiting the child e.g. storytelling,
book reading and rhymes.

Stepping Stones,

Keighley and
Shipley area.

Getting Along,
Working with
migrant mothers
from the

£2,140

Faith in our Communities will promote dialogue and understanding between the
leaders and congregations of places of worship and LGBT communities. Whilst
some places of worship are liberal in their attitudes to sexuality and gender
identity, many are confused and some are hostile. Issues over Relationship and
Sex education have led to some parents feeling that their parental rights and
their faith is being disrespected. LGBT communities point to the rise in hate crime
and recent attacks and want to be acknowledged as equal members of society.
We seek to dispel myths and promote acceptance, without asking anyone to
change their religion or beliefs.

Faith in our Communities,

Getting Along
and Feeling Safe,
Working with the
LGBT and Faith
Organisations

£4,519

Equity Partnership

Across
Bradford
District.

The Great Horton neighbourhood has a significant population of recently arrived
Roma families, largely from Slovakia. The key integration focus of Great Horton
Ambassadors is to improve relations between the Roma and non-Roma
communities in Great Horton. The project will address marginalisation and low
aspirations through collaborative involvement in locally based social action
projects.

Great Horton
Ambassadors,

Bradford South,
Great Horton

Getting Involved,
Working with
Roma and wider
communities

£4,899

The project Community, Create, Celebrate! specifically aims to run three 8-week

Community, Create,

Bradford South,

Getting Involved,

£4,680

The Good Sheppard
Centre

The Youth Association

3

Page 52

courses to pass on new skills and bring people together. The work undertaken in
the eight-week courses will be showcased at a large-scale community gathering
which will also offer food and music from different cultures. This proposed
project will look at bringing diverse communities together through the sharing of
cultural knowledge to build integration and understanding between people from
different backgrounds. This will enable people to be more involved in their own
community through opening up dialogue in a non-threatening environment. This
project will encourage the whole community to come together to share cultural
knowledge as Ravenscliffe is traditionally a white, working class community
which has seen an increase of residents from different backgrounds in the past
five years. This project proposes to explore different cultures in a fun and
engaging way,that will work with families from different cultures to create
costumes, food and dance to culminate in a large community cohesion
celebration event at the end of the project.

Celebrate!,

There is a huge need for “Dads and Kids” work to reach out to Dads from new
Communities, as other organisations and partner agencies have highlighted. BD5
Dads&Kids aim to run family fun days targeting new communities in partnership
with organisations that we work with (Redcross Refugee Action, Bevan
wellbeing). These Organisations have expressed the need for Dads and male
carers to engage in localised activities, to combat isolation and build local
Networks. This project aims to bring them to normality to life in the UK. They
aim to deliver a range of programmes that will educate and give an insight into
life as a parent on the UK.

BD5 Dads&Kids,

Bradford Fringe Festival is a festival that not only helps highlight Bradford in a
positive light; it is filled with locally and nationally recognised talent; a festival
that also gives back to Bradford and the communities that support it's
development. The Bradford Fringe Festival will help to promote greater
interaction, dialogue and understanding between people from different
backgrounds through programming and supporting cross-community

Bradford Fringe Festival,

Ravenscliffe.

Working with
people from
different cultures
in Ravenscliffe.

BD5 area

Getting Along,
Working with
Dads from new
communities

£3,500

Across
Bradford
District

Feeling Safe,
Getting Along,
Working withal
communities

£5,000

Ravenscliffe Community
Association

BD5 Dads&Kids

Bloomin Buds Theatre
Company

4

.

collaborations. The project will Identify future leaders within the youth
community and give them opportunity to develop, learn new skills and interact
with people from across the city. The project will entice future participation and
strengthen community bonds.

Page 53

The Sharakat Project - Talking for Change will provide a safe space for people
from different backgrounds and cultures to meet, to develop friendships and
understanding. Learning about each other’s differences but also finding that they
have ‘more in common’. The group will encourage everyone to take a part,
building confidence amongst a group with low confidence and a mix of
languages. They will host a series of community discussions around difficult
issues and community problems, helping the group to work through possible
solutions and ideas.

The Sharakat Project Talking for Change

Piloting Community Cohesion Team will deliver projects that aim to develop
children and young people through activities such as health, out of school
activities; sporting opportunities and tackling loneliness. This project aims to
promote greater interaction, dialogue and understanding between people of
different backgrounds, so they are able to participate in mainstream society,
thereby enhancing their social, educational & economic attainment. They will
deliver an accredited traineeship programme linked to volunteering/work
placements in some of Bradford’s most disadvantaged wards. The pilot project
intends to recruit and train (14 plus) people from a range of disadvantaged
backgrounds (BME, women, refugees and white working class communities).
They will be offered participatory training, which will develop their skills in role
modelling; leadership; mentoring; team building; and cascading training.

Piloting Community
Cohesion Team,

Bradford West,
Manningham

Getting Along,
Working with all
communities

£2,802

Across
Bradford
District.

Getting Along,
Feeling Safe,
Working with
people from
migrant and
settled
communities.

£1,065*

St Paul’s Church,
Manningham

BYDP

Passed
funding
threshold.
Topped up
to £2500 to
make
viable.

5

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 11/

Report of the Strategic Director, Place to the meeting of
Bradford South Area Committee to be held on 26th
September 2019

J
Subject:
YOUTH SERVICE UPDATE – BRADFORD SOUTH.

Summary statement:
This report gives an update on work undertaken by the Youth Service in the Bradford South Area
in the past 12 months and outlines the direction of travel for the next 12 months.

Steve Hartley
Strategic Director
Place

Portfolio:

Report Contact: Mick Charlton
Phone: (01274 431155)
E-mail: mick.charlton@bradford.gov.uk

Overview & Scrutiny Area:

Neighbourhoods and Community Safety

Children’s Services

Page 55

1.

SUMMARY

1.1

This report gives an update on work undertaken by the Youth Service in the
Bradford South Area in 2019-20.

1.2

The Report outlines the following information:





Actual Youth Worker staffing structures in the five Constituency Areas
An update on Youth Service Activity in Bradford South
An update on Bradford South’s Youth Service allocated base budget, current
spend and projected spend for the financial year 2019-20 and 2020-21
Outline future plans and direction of the Youth Service in Bradford South and
District wide

2.

BACKGROUND

2.1

The Bradford Council Youth Service is part of the wider Bradford District Youth
Offer that aims to ensure the provision of a range of activities and services that take
place in safe spaces, where young people can develop a sense of belonging,
socialise with their peers and develop relationships with adults they can trust. It
recognises that with the right supportive relationships, strong ambitions and good
opportunities all young people can realise their potential and be positive and active
members of society.

2.2

The Youth Service Vision statement is to work with partners to ensure that young
people grow up healthy, happy, informed and aspiring; proud of who they are,
where they come from, and actively involved in their community.

2.3

Youth Service priorities reflect the priorities of the Youth Service and are aligned to
the five Key Elements of the Bradford District Youth Offer. They are KPIs
Youth Offer Element 1 – Information, Advice and Guidance(IAG)

Increase the numbers of young people accessing IAG through digital media.
Youth Offer Element 2 – Voice and influence

Increase the numbers of young people participating in Youth Voice opportunities at all
levels.
Youth Offer Element 3 – Open access

Deliver a diverse youth offer through working in partnership with the Voluntary &
Community Sector (VCS) and local communities.
Youth Offer Element 4 - Targeted provision

Increase the number of specific interventions to address the needs of vulnerable young
people.
Youth Offer Element 5 - Active citizens and young people’s contribution to community life

Increase the number of young people having a positive impact on their community.
2.4

In terms of staffing, the Youth Service is managed as one service. Staff are
contracted to the Youth Service and are allocated to Areas. Appendix C outlines
the current allocation of Youth Service staff across the District.

Page 56

3.

OTHER CONSIDERATIONS

3.1

Open Access Youth Provisions
Open access youth provision is delivered within all Wards in Bradford South, these
sessions create a safe space for young people to engage in positive informal
educative activities. Young people have the opportunity to engage in the planning,
delivery and evaluation of the twelve week programmes building their skills and
aspirations whilst working towards achieving accreditations. Appendix A – Bradford
South Youth Service ‘What’s On Guide’ details the current provisions being
delivered within the Wards in Bradford South.
Bradford Youth Service South Wards Update (Appendix B) gives an overview of
some of the youth work being delivered in South.

3.2

Voice and Influence
Ten young people from Bradford South have completed training to become young
inspectors. The Inspectors programme involves young people going into
educational establishments including schools and completing audits on the delivery
of grant based projects. This gives young people an insight into grant processes,
delivery of programmes, the opportunity to meet other young people whilst
working within educational establishments to develop skills, gain experience, being
empowered to make decisions and offer information, advice and guidance. In
addition to the Inspectors programme young people who attend all of our provisions
are supported to engage in voice and influence programmes including planning of
provisions, attending scrutiny committees, becoming Ambassadors and the
interviewing of senior council candidates, all of which develop their pathways into
future educational and employment opportunities.
The Bradford South Ambassadors are supported within their local ward based
youth provision. This enables the ambassadors to come together and work with
their peers and share ideas. The ambassadors take turns to host one another on a
regular basis and by visiting each ward they gain first hand experiences of life in
that community. We have found that this creates a strong working partnership
between the ambassadors and helps them draw on first hand experience when
working with decision makers.

3.3

South Wide Provisions
Bradford South currently leads on the delivery of 8 area wide sessions weekly,
these sessions are for young people to attend from across Bradford South. The
area wide sessions are themed to suit young people’s needs, interests and
increase our Youth Offer. Bradford South leads on the central inclusion provision for
the area with a current membership of 23 young people. This provision supports
young people with additional needs to engage in positive activities with their siblings
and peers whilst being supported to engage in universal open access provisions.
Information regarding the South Wide provisions can be found in both Appendix A
and Appendix B.

Page 57

3.4

LGBT+
The Bradford South team ensures LGBT + based work is delivered within all of our
provisions and as Bradford South does not deliver any provision directly for young
people who are LGBT+ we ensure young people are supported to access the 5
different sessions delivered by the Youth Service within Bradford City Centre.

3.5

Buddy support as part of Youth In Mind
Building on the continued success of the Buddies Work and our partnership within
the Youth In Mind (YIM) initiative the Youth Service has been re- commissioned to
deliver ‘Buddy Support’ to young people across the district.
Youth Workers receive referrals from the Child and Adolescent Mental Health
Service (CAMHS), School Nurses & other professionals, the Youth Workers then
act as Buddies to the young people, their role is to befriend them, support them
using the Signs of Safety approach and navigate them to the various support
opportunities available to them.
All full time youth workers hold an additional caseload in schools, Delivering 1:1
work on a weekly basis developing young people’s confidence, self belief and
resilience. This supports working towards reducing the demand on specialist
services.

3.6

Other work targeted at young people with specific needs including CSE.
The Youth Service continues to provide direct support to young people at risk of
Child Sexual Exploitation. Youth Workers support the young people referred on a
1:1 basis and engage them in support opportunities available. Through
engagement with the Youth Service and following the support young people have
reported on feeling safer, they have an increased support network and due to
engaging in local provisions young people are feeling more connected within their
local communities. Bradford South currently runs a number of female only
provisions and YIM groups all of which offer young people a safe space to engage
in positive informal educative activities.

3.7

Early Help
Bradford Youth Service continues to work with the Early Help Team and supports
the area based panels. Through these panels young people are referred to the
Youth Service and are supported by the area Ward Youth Workers to engage in
localised youth provisions, YIM groups and for those who require it an offer of 1:1
support. The young people referred have been supported around a number of
issues including non engagement in education, anger management, family
breakdowns, Anti Social Behaviour (ASB) & domestic abuse, all of which helps to
prevent young people from entering the social care system and supports them into
a positive destination.

Page 58

3.8

Changing Places and Community Integration
The youth service plays a pivotal role in supporting cohesion of young people
across the district; Bradford South has allocated a link worker to champion the
Changing Places programme. This innovative programme is focused on young
people from new migrant communities including those with refugee status. Bradford
South runs a very popular session on a Wednesday evening with over 10 young
people engaging weekly.

3.9

Youth Service budget reduction from 1st April 2020
Following the budget decision at Full Council in February 2019 the Youth Service
has a budget cut of £513,000 to implement from 1st April 2020 onwards. This
equates to approximately 25% of the current Youth Service base budget.
The Youth Service is working towards minimising the impact of the cut to base
budget through accessing external funding and operating as a traded service.
Currently the following funded projects are being explored to be in place from the 1st
April to mitigate the loss of base budget and maintain the core of the service:


Youth In Mind work with young people with mental health issues which is funded
by the CCGs.



Breaking the Cycle project with young people at risk of criminal exploitation and
is funded by the Home Office/ West Yorkshire Police.



School based work where schools are funding the Youth Service to deliver
wellbeing support on traded service basis.



Funding to maintain open access provision in neighbourhoods with lower
numbers of young people 13-19.

In addition to finding external sources of funding there will be some reductions to
staffing. These are the deletion of an Advanced Practitioner and two 16-19 Youth
Worker Posts. The staff reductions will contribute £118k of the required base
budget saving.
As a consequence of the staffing reduction there will be one Advanced Practitioner
who will cover Keighley and Shipley Areas and report to the Keighley Area
Coordinator.
There will also be a need to align 16-19 Youth Workers and 20-23 Youth Workers
to where the demand emerges from the traded service work with schools.
Base budget used to pay for sessional youth work will be shared between Areas
proportionate to the population of young people within the Wards that make up the
Area. Area Committees will be involved in identifying within the Area which
sessions to prioritise. This will contribute £75k towards the required based budget
savings.

Page 59

Potential secondary implications of changes to funding from 1st April 2020
Youth Workers may have less time to deliver Youth Work within community settings
and this may impact on the neighbourhood based delivery of open access sessions.
There is likely to be a reduction in open access sessions delivered
The service is increasingly targeted on the specific requirements of funders.
4.

FINANCIAL & RESOURCE APPRAISAL

4.1

The contribution of base budget to the substantive budget for professionally
qualified Youth Workers District wide in 2019-20 in Bradford South is £250k.
Following the cut to the Youth Service in 2020-21 this will be reduced. The plan is
to replace base budget with funding from other sources.

4.2 The budgets for sessional part time staff and casuals in 2019-20 is £490k of this £90k
is allocated to Bradford South. In 2020-21 the based budget in Bradford South will
reduce by £10k to £80k for sessional youth work
Areas
Bradford East
Bradford West
Bradford South
Keighley
Shipley

5.

%
Budget
Budget
16-19s Total
current
2020-21
Difference
12,497
25%
£110,000
£105,000
-£5,000
13,231
26%
£110,000
£109,200
-£1,000
9,407
19%
£90,000
£79,800
-£10,000
8,008
16%
£90,000
£67,200
-£23,000
6,842
14%
£90,000
£58,800
-£31,000
49,985 100%
£490,000
-£70,000

RISK MANAGEMENT AND GOVERNANCE ISSUES
The implementation of the planned budget savings for the Youth Service is subject
to the internal risk management plan of the Council and progress is reported to the
Place Departmental Management Team.

6.

LEGAL APPRAISAL
No issues.

7.

OTHER IMPLICATIONS

7.1

EQUALITY & DIVERSITY
The Youth Service as part of the Council’s commitment to the District has a
responsibility to ensure that the service is accessible to all young people and that
participation in the service reflects this approach.

7.2

SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS
The Youth Service delivery enables local initiatives to be supported, encouraging
groups and individuals to undertake activities that improve the social, economic and
environmental well being of their communities.

Page 60

7.3

GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS IMPACTS
Greenhouse gas emissions and wider environmental impacts was a consideration
of the Buildings Review.

7.4

COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS
Young people from across Bradford South engaging in weekly open access and
specialist provisions are directly and indirectly involved with supporting and
developing community safety within their local area. Voice and influence is central
to youth work delivery ensuring young peoples ideas, suggestions and thoughts are
heard.
The strengthened approach to the devolution of the Youth Service as will allow for:





7.5

an increased sense of local democracy for both young people and communities
young people to be more active in democratic, decision-making processes
alongside their political representatives
the voice and influence of young people to remain central, meaningful and
paramount in identifying and addressing needs and issues in their
communities
the requirements of the localism/devolution agenda to be met effectively and
efficiently

HUMAN RIGHTS ACT
There are no direct Human Rights implications arising from the recommendations
below.

7.6

TRADE UNION
All budget proposals are subject to consultation with the Trade Unions.

7.7

WARD IMPLICATIONS
The information in this report is related to all wards in the constituency and
appendix B outlines the Youth Service projects and activities delivered across
South.

8.

NOT FOR PUBLICATION DOCUMENTS
None.

9.

OPTIONS

9.1

That Bradford South Area Committee adopts the recommendations outlined in this
report.

9.2

That Bradford South Area Committee adopts the recommendations outlined in this
report, with amendments.

9.3

That Bradford South Area Committee decides not to accept the recommendations
outlined in this report.

Page 61

10.

RECOMMENDATIONS

10.1

That the work undertaken by the Youth Service in the Bradford South Area as
detailed in this report be welcomed.

11.

APPENDICES

11.1

Appendix A: Bradford South Youth Service – What’s On Guide

11.2

Appendix B: Bradford South – Youth Service Update

11.3

Appendix C: Bradford Youth Service Staffing Structures

12.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

12.1

Youth Service – Bradford South Area report. Bradford South Area Committee, 19th
September 2018.

Page 62

Appendix A
Bradford South Youth Service
Baseline Youth Provision - 2019
TONG WARD
For more information contact Chris McMahon, 07582101456, chris.mcmahon@bradford.gov.uk
Day/Time
Activity
Location
Frequency
Monday 4:306.30pm

Girls Group

TFD Centre

Weekly

Tuesday 5.308.00pm

Youth Club

TFD Centre

Weekly

Wednesday 5.308:00pm

Boys Group

TFD Centre

Weekly

WYKE WARD
For more information contact Zwelani Mayo, 07582107053, zwelani.mayo@bradford.gov.uk
Day/Time
Activity
Location
Frequency
Thursday 6.009.00pm

Youth Club

Delph Hill Community
Centre

Weekly

Friday 6.00-9.00pm

Youth Club

Delph Hill Community
Centre

Weekly

Tuesday 5:308:30pm

Youth club

St. Mary’s

Fortnightly

QUEENSBURY WARD
For more information contact Emma Jones, 07582108191, emma.jones@bradford.gov.uk
Day/Time
Activity
Location
Frequency
Wednesday 5.308.00pm

Senior Youth Club

Victoria Hall

Weekly

Thursday 5.307.30pm

Youth Club

Victoria Hall

Weekly

Mondays 5.30 7.30pm

Project Work

Queensbury

Monthly

Page 63

ROYDS WARD
For more information contact Stephen Harrison, 07582101715, stephen.harrison@bradford.gov.uk
Day/Time
Activity
Location
Frequency
Tuesday 6.008.30pm

Youth Club

Buttershaw Youth Centre

Weekly

Wednesday 6.008.30pm

Youth Club

Woodside Centre

Weekly

Thursday 6.008.30pm

Youth Club

Buttershaw Youth Centre

Weekly

WIBSEY WARD
For more information contact Tracey Gill, 07582100683, tracey.gill@bradford.gov.uk
Day/Time
Activity
Location

Frequency

Monday 6.008.30pm

Wibsey Youth Club

Wibsey Rugby club

Weekly

Tuesday 5.308.30pm

Project work

Outreach Wibsey /
Bankfoot

Weekly

GREAT HORTON WARD
For more information contact Patrick Nyroko, 07582103696, patrick.nyaroko@bradford.gov.uk
Day/Time
Activity
Location
Frequency
Monday 6.00Youth Club
Great Horton Village Hall
Weekly
8.00pm
Wednesday 6.008.00pm

Youth club

Scholemoor Youth Centre

Weekly

Thursday 6.008.00pm

Youth Club

Great Horton Village Hall

Weekly

Bradford South Constituency Wide
For more information contact Anthony Casson, 07582100684, anthony.casson@bradford.gov.uk
Day/Time
Activity
Location
Frequency
Friday 4.00-7.00pm

Bradford South Cycling
Group

Cycling Hub

Weekly

Thursday 6.008.00pm

Inclusion Session

Parkside Community
Centre

Weekly

Thursday 5.00 8.00pm

WRAP Peer Support
Session

Changes every 12 weeks
(Currently TFD)

Weekly

Monday 4.30 –
6.30pm

Youth in Mind Peer
Support Group

TFD Centre

Weekly

Page 64

Tuesday 4.00 6.00pm

Youth in Mind Peer
Support Group

Buttershaw Youth Centre

Weekly

Wednesday 5.007:30pm

Youth in Mind Peer
Support Group

Delph Hill Centre

Weekly

Thursday 5.00 –
7.00pm

Youth in Mind Peer
Support Group

Park Ave / Horsfall
Stadium

Weekly

Friday 5.00 -7:30pm

Youth in Mind Peer
Support Session

TFD Centre

Weekly

SCHOOLS WORK
For more information contact Anthony Casson, 07582100684, anthony.casson@bradford.gov.uk
Day
Activity
Location
Frequency
Target group
Monday &
Tuesday

1:1 Support

Tong

Weekly

YIM

Wednesday
& Thursday

1:1 Support

BBEC

Weekly

YIM

Wednesday

1:1 Support

Appleton

Weekly

YIM

Tuesday &
Thursday

1:1 Support

Forsters

Weekly

YIM

Thursday

1:1 Support

Queensbury

Weekly

YIM

TBC

1:1 Support

Grange

Weekly

YIM

Tuesday

1:1 Support

Dixons City

Weekly

YIM

Wednesday

1:1 Support

Dixons Kings

Weekly

YIM

The above table provides an overview of the work that is delivered in secondary schools in
Bradford South. Each youth worker will hold an average case load of 12 young people
who they provide one to one support to over a half-term. This enables youth workers to
work with a large number of young people over the course of a school year. The impact of
these early interventions helps reduce exclusions and maintain attendance whilst also
reducing the demand on specialist services. The support received is unique to each
individual but often focuses on emotional well being, anxiety and low self esteem.
The impact of this ‘school based support’ has been the growth of ‘community based’ peer
support groups across the constituency. These groups offer young people the opportunity
to share the ‘self care skills’ that they have learnt with others. We commonly refer to these
groups as Youth in Mind – Peer Support groups.

Page 65

Appendix B
Ward Updates:
Tong Ward Youth Provision:
We run five sessions of youth provision each week – all of which are based at the TFD
Centre in Holme Wood. The sessions provide a wide range of young people the
opportunity to build relationships with our youth work team. As a result, we have seen
young people choose to; engage in positive activities, support one another and take
responsibility for their local community.
Working together with local partners including All Star, Outloud, E:merge, Step2, Valley
Project and Build a Girl has provided a clear and consistent offer of support to both young
people and their families. A recent example of partnership work is the Moving Up
programme that supported young people making the transition between primary and
secondary schools. Case study A - provides an insight into the impact of programme for
one young person.
Queensbury Ward Youth Provision:
We run five sessions in the Queensbury Ward, on a Monday evening we run two sessions
4-5pm Archery and 5.00-6:30pm Arts Award Group, Wednesday we have the open access
youth club 5.30 – 8.00pm aimed at school years 9,10,11 and 12, on a Thursday we have
an open access youth session aimed at schools years 7 and 8.
In addition, we work with all year groups in Queensbury Academy providing support for
emotional wellbeing of students. This work provides an excellent opportunity to bridge
students from the local area into youth provision. As a result we have a regular flow of new
members who are supported and encouraged to participate in range of positive activities
outside of school.
In addition, Youth Workers have undertaken a number of outreach sessions in the local
area including Clayton Heights and the Westwood park estate. This has been a joint
venture with the PCSOs through out February and June 2019. Youth Workers continue to
work closely with a wide range of community partners to develop new projects and
respond to emerging needs.
Royds Ward Youth Provision:
We run five sessions in the Royds ward and use the Buttershaw Youth Centre as our main
delivery base. The youth work team continues to develop strong relationships with young
people, many of who are vulnerable for a range of reasons. The sessions at Buttershaw
Youth Centre encourage young people to both respect and support each other. An
example of this is the girls group that is now in its fifth year. The group supports young
people to feel less isolated, more connected with their peers and safer. An impact of the
targeted work that we deliver has seen more vulnerable young people able to make the
transition into open access youth provision.
In Woodside, we continue to work with our community partner Sandale to offer a weekly
Page 66

youth club. This has allowed youth workers to work together to develop a programme of
activities that seek to reduce Anti Social Behaviour in the local area.
We are proud to work in partnership with community partners to help develop new
community events at Buttershaw Youth Centre. These partners have planned and
delivered a series of action projects that have encourage residents to help maintain, renew
and improve the centre for the whole community.
Great Horton Ward Provision:
Young people in Great Horton have the opportunity to participate in youth provision at both
Scholemoor Youth Centre and Great Horton Village Hall. The youth work team continues
to build trusting relationships with a large number of young people, many of whom are
from Eastern European backgrounds.
Youth workers have worked closely with local community partners to help address a range
of local community issues inc; Anti Social Behaviour (ASB) and litter. A key focus of the
teams work recently has been on developing a programme that seeks to encourage young
people to take responsibility for recycling. The aim of the programme is educate young
people (and their families) about how and what to recycle. The programme seeks to
encourage young people to take greater ownership of their local green spaces and use
action days to promote use of rubbish bins.
Great Horton has also seen a number of young people engaged in the Breaking Cycle
Project. Case study B provides an insight into the impact of targeted youth work and how
it helps young people to move away from Serious Organised Crime (SOC).
Wyke Youth Provision:
Young people in Wyke are able to access youth provision at the Delph Hill Centre and St
Marys Church. The Youth Work team uses outreach work in the local area to encourage
young people to use these facilities and engage in a programme of positive activities. The
aim of this approach is to protect young people from anti social behaviour.
Our relationship with Appleton Academy enables us to build relationships with a wide
range of young people whilst also supporting those who are more vulnerable. Our
approach in school sees us offering 1 to 1 support, building trust and breaking down
isolation. An impact of the work has seen the development of several new sessions that
have led to young people; bowling at Oakenshaw, cycling in Wyke park and participating
in activities at Park Ave FC. As a result, several new community partnerships have begun
to be formed that aim to offer young people a greater role in their local community.
Wibsey Youth Provision:
Over the last year our youth work team have seen a significant increase in the number of
vulnerable young people that access our universal provision. A number of these young
people have needed to be supported on a one to one basis in order to help with issues
such as anger, low self esteem and self harm. As a result Youth workers have worked
closely with services such as Children’s Social Care, Early Help and the Police to ensure
that young people are safe and families are supported.

Page 67

In response to the increased levels of vulnerability, the youth work team piloted a Summer
Transition Programme that worked with local primary schools in Wibsey to target
vulnerable young people in year 6. Over the summer these young people were supported
through positive activities that provided them with an opportunity to feel more confident
about starting secondary school. These young people will continue to be supported over
the next year and it is hoped that this will reduce the risk of exclusion and the need for
specialist support.
Case Study A
Let me introduce you to Young Person X, who is school age and lives in Bradford with his
mum, Young Person X’s dad is currently in prison. When Young Person X knocked on the
door of the youth centre I had never seen them before and neither had the other workers,
the young person wasn’t on our targeted list but talking with them for a short while I knew
this young person would benefit from our project.
Young Person X was one of the youngest in our group and loved physical activity and
said this was the main reason for attending the summer project because they wanted to
loose weight and so they didn’t get bullied.
Young Person X started to become a regular attending most days, they were the youngest
in the group but often showed a mature sense of emotional intelligence; opening up to
others in the group about how hard it is to have a family member locked but and dispelling
the myths about having a dad in prison made you strong and hard. They openly shared
how they cried themself to sleep most nights because they missed dad, as we have a
number of young people in the group who have lost their dads to prison. Young Person X’s
emotional vulnerability helped the other young people share their experiences and
emotions around the subject.
One of the sessions I encouraged the young persons to make cards and write letters to
their dads, Young Person X was the only one who wanted to do it. They sat down with
staff and made a card and letter for Dad. We took some pictures of Young Person X and
wrote the envelope out for dad to reply, included it in the card, put a stamp on and posted
it off.
Just over a week later Young Person X’s letter had been returned because we had used
glue to stick a picture on which wasn’t allowed in. I could see the disappointment in Young
Person X’s eyes it was heartbreaking. We found out that the Dad had received a
photocopy of the card and the photos we’d sent so this helped and made it less
disappointing.
The first week back after the holidays a letter comes through the post addressed to Young
Person X! It was a reply from Dad.
We facilitated Young Person X reading his letter in a calm and safe environment. It was a
very emotional moment with staff and Young Person X both overwhelmed by the
sentiment and emotion. We explored how Young Person X was feeling and talked in great
depth, giving them the chance to process their emotions. We then constructed a letter
back to Dad and will await his reply.
Receiving a reply from the dad was a really big deal not just for Young Person X but the
Page 68

other young people as well because many of them had said there’s no point writing letters
to their dads because they won’t reply. My hope is that we can continue this writing group
and some of the other young people will build up the courage to join in.
This summer through Moving UP we have given this young person a supportive and safe
environment with positive role models both male and female. A place that is consistent
and reliable where they can come Monday to Friday; To eat a good meal and get five a
day. A place they can explore their feelings and emotions, laugh, cry and reflect.
Somewhere they can learn about what his hopes, dreams and future ambitions are.
Moving UP! has created a place this summer where many young persons like Young
Person X can run, kick a ball, punch a bag, play some games, listen to music and talk with
friends. A place where they can try new things, learn new skills and discover talents they
never knew they had.
Case Study B
One of the young people referred to the Breaking the Cycle Project was being exploited by
a criminal gang and had become heavily used to sell class A drugs. The young person
was being exploited by the gang and used in both the local area and in a neighbouring
county. In addition to being exploited themself, the young person had also started to be
forced into exploiting some of their own peers.
Intensive work was undertaken with this young person and over time a positive
relationship was built that enabled the young person to understand more about
exploitation, criminal grooming and county lines.
Through a sustained and consistent approach the young person was encouraged to take
up boxing as a relief to get rid of the stress they were experiencing and they now attend a
boxing gym three times a week. This has enabled the young person to meet the worker in
a safe space and they have increasing became surrounded by positive role models.
Over the course of the last few months we have been able to develop a better
understanding about some of the factors that led to the young person being exploited.
Although the young person does not want to use these as an excuse they have been able
to reflect on how losing a parent to suicide made them feel isolated and this lead to
hanging out with the wrong ‘friends’ and constantly getting arrested. They young person
described this as things just getting out of control and getting deeper and deeper and
feeling trapped.
We continue to work with this young person who has now started a construction course.
The young person’s parent reports seeing a massive changes in their child ‘s behaviour
and believes this is down to the relationship that they built with the worker form the
breaking the cycles project.

Page 69

Appendix C
Defacto Youth Service Structures (Substantive posts (FTEs) and part time hours) 2019
Bradford East (Staffing base budget = £385,000)
1 x Advanced Practitioner 26-29
1 x Youth Worker 20-23
4.5 x Youth Worker 16-19
0.5 x Youth Worker 12-15
1 x Apprentice Youth Worker
+ Up to 110 part time hours (combination of Youth Support Worker and Leaders in Charge
contracted and casual) from base budget.
East total substantive posts = 8
Bradford West (Staffing base budget = £385,000)
1 x Advanced Practitioner 26-29
2.5 x Youth Worker 16-19
3 x Youth Worker 12-15
3 x Apprentice Youth Workers
+ Up to 110 part time hours (combination of Youth Support Worker and Leaders in Charge
contracted and casual from base budget)
West total substantive posts = 9.5
Bradford South (Staffing base budget £314,000 + external £59k funding)
1 x Advanced Practitioner 26-29
1 x Youth Worker 20-23
3.5 x Youth Worker 16-19
1.0 x Youth Worker 12-15
2 x Apprentice Youth Workers

Page 70

South total substantive posts = 8.5
+ Up to 90 part time hours (combination of Youth Support Worker and Leader in Charge
contracted and casual) from base budget
Keighley (Staffing based budget £314,000)
1 x Advanced Practitioner 26-29
0.5 x Youth Worker 20-23
4 x Youth Worker 16-19
2 x Apprentice Youth Workers
+ Up to 90 part time hours (combination of Youth Support Worker and Leader in Charge
contracted and casual) from base budget
Keighley total substantive posts = 7.5
Shipley (Staffing base budget £264,000)
1 x Advanced Practitioner 26-29
2.5 X Youth Worker 16-19
0.5 x Youth Worker 12-5
2 x Apprentice Youth Workers
+ Up to 90 part time hours (combination of Youth Support Worker and Leader in Charge
contracted and casual) from base budget
Total fte in Substantive posts = 6
District wide (funded by external funds)
1 x AP
4 x Youth Workers (Preventing Serious and Organised Crime)
Total District wide (including vacancies recruiting to currently) = 5

APs District wide coordination responsibilities for the Youth Service
Page 71

East – LGB and Trans work
West – None currently
South – Child Sexual Exploitation and Mental Health work
Keighley – Inclusion Work
Shipley – Youth Inspectors
District wide team – BOA Ambassadors, Workforce Development, Integration Strategy, Serious
Organised Crime and Detached work
NB Apprentices employed District wide but placed in above Areas. Bradford West have an
additional apprentice paid for out of base budget

Page 72

Agenda Item 12/
Report of the Strategic Director of Place to the meeting
of Bradford South Area Committee to be held on
Thursday, 26 September 2019.

K
Subject:
2019/20 BRADFORD SOUTH YOUTH AND COMMUNITY CHEST GRANTS

Summary statement:
This report details the Youth and Community Chest Grants awarded from applications
received prior to the 31 May 2019 deadline.

Steve Hartley
Strategic Director of Environment and
Sport

Portfolio:
Safer and Stronger Communities
Abdul Jabar

Report Contact: Mick Charlton
Bradford South Area Co-ordinator

Overview & Scrutiny Area:

Phone: (01274) 431155
E-mail: mick.charlton@bradford.gov.uk

Corporate

Page 73

1.

SUMMARY
This report details the Youth and Community Chest Grants awarded from
applications received prior to the 31 May 2019 deadline.

2.

BACKGROUND

2.1

The Youth and Community Chest Budget exists to support and enable a wide range
of community based projects and activities to be developed to benefit communities
across Bradford South.

2.2

Applications which meet the criteria outlined in Appendix I are considered from
groups, organisations and individuals contributing across a broad spectrum of
initiatives, to the wellbeing and development of communities within Bradford South.

2.3

A Ward Officer, within the Bradford South Area Co-ordinator’s Office, assesses the
received applications and prepares Officer Recommendations.

2.4

The applications from each Ward are sent to the individual Ward Councillors with a
request for comments, which inform the decision making process.

2.5

The Area Co-ordinator, under delegated powers, is responsible for making decisions
on the received applications. These decisions are made following guidance
received from the Grants Advisory Group, whose membership is the Chair, Deputy
Chair and Opposition Spokesperson of the Area Committee.

2.6

Decisions are currently made four times a year, following the closing dates of 31
May, 31 August, 31 October and 31 January.

2.7

It is also possible, when decisions need to be taken outside the formal process, that
the Area Co-ordinator can decide on an application having consulted individually
the Members of the Grants Advisory Group.

3.

OTHER CONSIDERATIONS

3.1

The wide range of projects is outlined in Appendix 2 were awarded grants to a value
of £2,660. This has enabled projects costing £5,032 to proceed which will benefit
communities across Bradford South.

4.

FINANCIAL & RESOURCE APPRAISAL

4.1

Financial
Whilst the grants awarded at the Grants Advisory Group meeting held on June 13th
2019 were £2,660 (see Appendix 2), this has enabled projects and activities costing
£5,032 to take place.

4.2

Staffing
Support is provided from within the Area Co-ordinator’s Office by Anthony Casson,
Area Practitioner, from within existing resources.

Page 74

5.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND GOVERNANCE ISSUES
There are no significant risks arising from the proposed recommendations in this
report.

6.

LEGAL APPRAISAL
There is no legal requirement for the Council to provide small grants for the benefit
of local communities.

7.

OTHER IMPLICATIONS

7.1

EQUALITY & DIVERSITY
In awarding Youth and Community Chest Grants, special consideration is given to
particular disadvantaged groups including the elderly, people with disabilities, youth,
ethnic minorities and people who are unemployed.
In addition, special
consideration is given to particular areas i.e. inner city areas and Social housing
estates.

7.2

SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS
Youth and Community Chest Grants enable local initiatives to be supported, thus
encouraging groups and individuals to undertake activities that improve the social,
economic and environmental well being of their communities.

7.3

GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS IMPACTS
Greenhouse gas emissions and wider environmental impacts will be a consideration
in assessing applications.

7.4

COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS
A number of the projects supported are either directly or indirectly concerned with
improving community safety within local communities.

7.5

HUMAN RIGHTS ACT
There are no direct Human Rights implications arising from the recommendations
below.

7.6

TRADE UNION
There are no implications for Trade Unions.

Page 75

7.7

WARD IMPLICATIONS
Youth and Community Chest grants are awarded to projects and activities that
support communities within the Great Horton, Queensbury, Royds, Tong, Wibsey
and Wyke Wards.

7.8

AREA COMMITTEE ACTION PLAN IMPLICATIONS
(for reports to Area Committees only)
Youth and Community Chest grants are awarded to projects and activities that
support priorities within the Bradford South Ward Plans.

8.

NOT FOR PUBLICATION DOCUMENTS
None.

9.

10.

11.

OPTIONS
9.1

That the report be noted.

9.2

There is only one option as the purpose of the report is to inform on the
allocation of Youth and Community Chest Grants.

RECOMMENDATIONS
10.1

That the wide range of applications from groups, organisations and
individuals across Bradford South are noted and welcomed.

10.2

That the Bradford South Area Co-ordinator’s Office continue to ensure the
effective allocation of the Youth and Community Chest budget by providing
appropriate advice and support to applicants.

APPENDICES
APPENDIX 1
APPENDIX 2

12.

Current Criteria for applications
Summary of Grants awarded 13th June Grants Advisory Group.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS
None.

Page 76

APPENDIX 1
CRITERIA FOR APPLICATIONS
1. Applications will only be considered from groups/organisations that either operate
in, or benefit people who live in, the Bradford South Constituency area, or
individuals living in the Constituency who are engaged in exceptional sporting,
artistic or voluntary work endeavours.
2. Applications will be considered to assist community-based leisure/cultural
activities that will be of benefit to the community, and where the activity could not
go ahead without financial assistance.
3. Special consideration will be given to particular target groups including the elderly,
disabled, youth, ethnic minorities, unemployed and to particular communities (e.g.
inner city areas, Council estates, etc) and to new starts and innovatory schemes.
4. Bids from new groups or previously unfunded groups will be positively
encouraged.
5. Grants may be used to complement other sources of funding (e.g.: Sports
Council). Bradford South Area Co-ordinator’s Office expects organisations to
make every effort to be self-supporting and will favour grants where other
funding/fundraising has been secured.
6. The maximum allocation from the Youth and Community Chest would not
normally exceed £350 for any individual project. Projects that cross boundaries
can be considered by a number of Area Co-ordinators' Offices, but the total grant
will not normally exceed £500.
7. Projects should not contravene Council Policy Guidelines in areas of Equality of
Opportunity (i.e., no discrimination of membership on grounds of sex, race,
religion, occupation or opinion).
8. The organisation should be a non-profit making voluntary organisation where
membership is open (i.e. no discrimination of membership on grounds of sex,
race, religion, occupation or opinion).
9. Grants will normally be, under broad and flexible guidelines, on a one-off basis to
cover capital or revenue expenditure.
10. Grants cannot be awarded for events/purchases that have taken place before the
application deadline dates, i.e. retrospective payments.
11. No group that has applied for and received funding in consecutive years should
automatically assume that funding will continue. Each application will be treated
on its merits.
12. Groups/organisations should normally expect only one grant per financial year.
13. Youth and Community Chest cannot be used to fund religious or political activities,
or capital expenditure exclusively connected with such activities.
14. Youth and Community Chest is not normally used to enable fundraising for a
secondary body, unless within the terms of a loss guarantee.
15. Groups/organisations must ensure that all statutory (and/or legal) Health and
Safety requirements are complied with and, where appropriate, advice must be
obtained and followed.
Page 77

APPENDIX 2
SUMMARY OF GRANTS AWARDED – MAY 31ST 2019 DEADLINE
WARD

ORGANISATION NAME

PURPOSE OF
GRANT

Great Horton

Friends of Brackenhill Park

Queensbury

Friends of Littlemoor Park

To help assist with
Party in the Park
To assisted with costs
of equipment for the
park as well as
financing yoga
classes.
To host and help pay
for advertising costs,
hall hire, food and
transportation for the
Queensbury Stars
Event.
To assist with costs to
produce and distribute
a booklet and leaflet
that explains the
history of Queensbury
Tunnel.
To cover the hire of a
llama encounter and
balloon modelling.
To help pay for travel
to visit Harlow Carr
Gardens.

QCHAP

Queensbury Tunnel
Society

Friends of Farfield
Royds
Wyke

Community Greenfingers
Group - Lower Wyke
Moravian Church
Norman Lodge

Oakenshaw Residents'
Association

To purchase garden
furniture for the
residents and other
service users of
Norman Lodge.
To help assist with
purchasing planters
and other equipment.

Total

Page 78

TOTAL
COST OF
PROJECT
£1,900

AMOUNT
OF
AWARD
£250

£502

£350

£700

£350

£270

£270

£600

£430

£400

£350

£270

£270

£390

£390

£5,032

£2,660

